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RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Tom Lund, Branch Manager

U.S. Mineral Products Company (d/b/a Isolatek International)
701 North Broadway Street

Huntington, Indiana 46750

Re:  Notice of Violation and Finding of Violation

Dear Mr. Lund:

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency is issuing the enclosed Notice of Violation
and Finding of Violation (NOV/FOV) to U.S. Mineral Products Company (d/b/a [solatek
International) (Isolatek or you). This NOV/FOV is issued in accordance with Section 113(a) of
the Clean Air Act (the Act), 42 U.S5.C. § 7413(a).

EPA has determined that Isolatek is violating the Prevention of Significant Deterioration
(PSD) requirements under Section 165 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7475, the implementing
regulations of Title V set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 70, and the Indiana State Implementation Plan at
its Huntington, Indiana facility.

EPA is offering you an opportunity to confer with us about the violations cited in the
NOV/FOV. The conference will give you an opportunity to present information on the specific
findings in the NOV/FOV, and the steps you will take to bring the facilities into compliance.
Please plan for your technical and management personnel to attend the conference to discuss

compliance measures and commitments. You may have an attorney represent you at this
conference.
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You may contact Daniel Schaufelberger at (312) 886-6814 to request a conference. You
should make the request for a conference no later than 10 calendar days after receipt of this
letter, and we should hold any conference within 30 calendar days of your receipt of this letter.

Sincerely yours,

C L. on

irector
ir and Radiation Division

Enclosure

cc: Phil Perry, Indiana Department of Environmental Management
Anthony J. Reitano, Herold Law



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 5
IN THE MATTER OF: )  Notice of Violation and
: )  Finding of Violation
)
U.S. Mineral Products Company )  Proceedings Pursuant to
(d/b/a [solatek International) )  Sections [13(a)(1) and (a)(3) of the
Huntington, Indiana ) 42 U.S.C. §§ 7413(a)(1) and (a)(3)
)
) EPA-5-11-01

NOTICE AND FINDING OF VIOLATION

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is issuing this Notice of Violation and
Finding of Violation (NOV/FOV or Notice) to U.S. Mineral Products Company (d/b/a Isolatek
International) (Isolatek), for violations of the Clean Air Act (the Act), 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.,
at its mineral wool production facility at 701 North Broadway Street, Huntington, Indiana.

This Notice is issued pursuant to Sections [ 13(a)(1) and (a)(3) of the Act, 42 U.S.C.
7413(a)(1) and (3). The authority to issue this Notice has been delegated to the Regional
Administrator of EPA Region 5 and redelegated to the Director, Air and Radiation Division.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

L. The Act is designed to protect and enhance the quality of the nation’s air so as to promote
the public health and welfare and the productive capacity of its populations. Section 101(b)(1) of
the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7401(b)(1). ’

Prevention of Significant Deterioration

2. When the Act was passed in 1970, Congress exempted existing facilities, such as the
mineral wool plant that is the subject of this Notice, from many of its requirements. However,
Congress also made it quite clear that this exemption would not last forever. As the United
States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit explained, “[t}he statutory scheme intends to
‘grandfather’existing industries; but...this is not to constitute a perpetual immunity from all
standards under the PSD program.” Alabama Power v. Costle, 636 F.2d 323, 400 (D.C. Cir.
1979). Rather, when a grandfathered facility intends to perform modifications at the facility that

may significantly increase emissions, the Act requires the company to install modern pollution
control devices.

3. The Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) provisions of Part C of Title I of the
Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7470-7492, and their implementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 52.21
(collectively “the PSD Program”), establish specific pre-construction requirements applicable to
the construction and modification of “major emitting facilities™ located in areas designated as



either attainment or unclassifiable for purposes of meeting the National Ambient Air Quality
Standards.

4. The PSD Program prohibits, among other things, a “major emitting facility” from
constructing a “major modification” unless it has obtained a PSD permit that applies "Best
Available Control Technology" (BACT) to control emissions from the proposed modified
emissions unit, and conducts an analysis to determine the air quality impacts of the modification.
Sections 165(a) and 169(2)(C) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7475(a) and 7479(2)(C), and

40 C.F.R. § 52.21(1).

5. Pursuant to Section 169 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7479(1), a “major emitting facility” is
defined to include, among others, any stationary source which emits, or has the potential to emit,
250 tons per year or more of any regulated PSD pollutant..

6. Sections 110(a) and 161 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7410(a) and 7471, require each state to
adopt a state implementation plan (SIP) containing regulations implementing the PSD Program.

7. A state may comply with Sections 110(a) and 161 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7410(a) and
7471, by having its own PSD regulations approved by EPA as part of its SIP, provided that the
state PSD regulations are at least as stringent as those set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 51.166.

8. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(a), if a state does not have PSD regulations that EPA has
approved and incorporated into its SIP, EPA may incorporate the federal PSD regulations set
forth at 40 C.F.R. § 52.21 into the SIP.

9. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 52.23, any person failing to comply with an approved regulatory
provision of a SIP is subject to an enforcement action under Section 113 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §
7413.

10. On August 7, 1980, EPA disapproved Indiana’s proposed PSD program, and incorporated
by reference the PSD regulations of 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(b) through (w) into the Indiana SIiP.

45 Fed. Reg. 52676, 52741. On September 30, 1980, EPA delegated to the Indiana Department
of Environmental Management (IDEM) certain authorities of the federal PSD program. 46 Fed.
Reg. 9580, 9583. On March 3, 2003, EPA conditionally approved indiana’s PSD regulations at
326 1AC 2-2. 68 Fed. Reg. 9892 (effective April 2,2003). On May 20, 2004, EPA provided
final approval of 326 1AC Rule 2-2 into the Indiana SIP. 69 Fed. Reg. 29071 (effective July 19,
2004). On June 18, 2007, EPA partially approved revisions to 326 IAC 2-2 related to EPA’s
NSR Reform regulations. 72 Fed. Reg. 33395 (effective July 18, 2007).

11.  The PSD regulations included as part of Indiana’s federally approved SIP at the time of
the project identified in Paragraph 41 are the regulations that are applicable and federally
enforceable for that project.

12. 326 Indiana Administrative Code (IAC) 2-1-3(a) of the Indiana SIP prohibits any person
from commencing construction or modification of any air poliution source without first applying
for and obtaining a construction permit from the commissioner of IDEM.



13. 326 IAC 2-1-3(b)(2) requires any person proposing the construction or modification of a
major stationary PSD source or major PSD modification, which is or which will be located in an

attainment area or unclassified area, to comply with the requirements of 326 [AC 2-2 of the
Indiana SIP.

14. 326 IAC 2-2-2 of the Indiana SIP states that new or modified major stationary sources or
major modifications, constructed in an area designated as attainment, are subject to 326 [AC 2-2,
which contains the PSD provisions of the Indiana SIP.

15. 326 IAC 2-2-1(gg)(2) of the Indiana SIP defines a “major stationary source” in an
attainment area as any stationary source with the potential to emit, 250 tons per year or more of a
regulated NSR pollutant.

l6. 326 IAC 2-2-1(ee) of the Indiana SIP defines a “major modification” as any physical
change in or change in the method of operation of a major stationary source that would result in a
significant emissions increase and a significant net emission increase of a regulated NSR
pollutant from the major stationary source. '

17. 326 IAC 2-2-1(jj) of the Indiana SIP defines “net emissions increase” as the amount by
which the sum of the increase in emissions from a physical change or change in the method of
operation and any other contemporaneous increases or decreases in emissions exceeds zero.

18. In reference to sulfur dioxide (SO;), 326 IAC 2-2-1(xx)(1)XC) of the Indiana SIP defines
“significant” with regard to a net emissions increase as a rate of emissions that would equal or
exceed 40 tons per year.

19. In reference to total reduced sulfur (TRS) (including H,S), 326 IAC 2-2-1(xx)(1)(O) of
the Indiana SIP defines “significant” with regard to a net emissions increase as a rate of
emissions that would equal or exceed 10 tons per year.

20. In reference to carbon monoxide (CO), 326 [AC 2-2-1(xx)(1)(A) of the Indiana SIP
defines “significant” with regard to a net emissions increase as a rate of emissions that would
equal or exceed 100 tons per year.

21. 326 IAC 2-2-3(3) of the Indiana SIP requires that owners or operators making a major
modification apply best available control technology (BACT) for each regulated NSR pollutant
for which the modification would result in a significant net emissions increase.

22. 326 IAC 2-2-1(1) of the Indiana SIP defines “BACT” as an emissions limitation based on
the maximum degree of reduction for each regulated NSR pollutant that would be emitted from
any proposed major modification while taking into account energy, environmental, and
economic impacts and other costs.

23. 326 [AC 2-2-5 of the Indiana SIP requires that owners or operators of a proposed major
modification demonstrate that allowable emission increases, in conjunction with all other
applicable emission increases or reductions, will not cause or contribute to air pollution in
violation of any ambient air quality standard or applicable maximum allowable increase over the
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baseline concentration in any area.

Title V Requirements

24. Section 502(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a), provides that no person may operate a
major source without a Title V permit after the effective date of any permit program approved or
promulgated under Title V of the Act. EPA first promulgated regulations governing state
‘operating permit programs on July 21, 1992. See 57 Fed. Reg. 32295; 40 C.F.R. Part 70. EPA

promulgated regulations governing the federal operating permit program on July 1, 1996. See 61
Fed. Reg. 34228; 40 C.F.R. Part 70.

25. Section 503 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7661b, sets forth the requirement to submit a timely,

accurate, and complete application for a permit, including information required to be submitted
with the application.

26. Section 504(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7661c(a), requires that each Title V permit include
enforceable emission limitations and standards, a schedule of compliance, and other conditions
necessary to assure compliance with applicable requirements, including those contained in a state
implementation plan. 42 U.S.C. § 7661¢c(a).’

27. 40 C.F.R. § 70.1(b) provides that: “All sources subject to these regulations shall have a

permit to operate that assures compliance by the source with all applicable requirements.” See
326 IAC 2-7-2.

28. 40 C.F.R. § 70.2 defines “applicable requirement” to include, “(1) Any standard or other
requirement provided for in the applicable implementation plan approved or promulgated by
EPA through rulemaking under title I of the Act that implements the relevant requirements of the
Act, including revisions to that plan promulgated in part 52 of this chapter . . .”

29. 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(b) provides that no source subject to 40 C.F.R. Part 70 requirements
may operate without a permit as specified in the Act. See also 326 IAC 2-7-2.

30. 40 C.F.R. § 70.5(a) and (c) require timely and complete permit applications for Title V
permits with required information that must be submitted and 40 C.F.R. § 70.6 specifies required
permit content. See also 326 [AC 2-7-2.

31. 40 C.F.R. § 70.5(b) provides that: “Any applicant who fails to submit any relevant facts
or who has submitted incorrect information in a permit application shall, upon becoming aware
of such failure or incorrect submittal, promptly submit such supplementary facts or corrected
information. In addition, an applicant shall provide additional information as necessary to
address any requirements that become applicable to-the source after the date it filed a complete
application but prior to release of a draft permit.” See also 326 IAC 2-7-2.



Indiana’s Title V Requirements

32.  EPA promulgated interim approval of the Indiana Title V program on November 14,
1995. See 60 Fed. Reg. 57188 (effective on December 14, 1995). EPA fully approved the
Indiana Title V program on December 4, 2001. See 66 Fed. Reg. 62969 (effective on November
30, 2001). The Indiana regulations governing the Title V permit program are codified at 326 IAC
2-7 and are federally enforceable pursuant to Section 113(a)(3) of the Act.

33. 326 IAC 2-7-3 provides that it is unlawful to violate any requirement of a permit issued
under Title V or to operate a major source except in compliance with a permit issued by a
permitting authority under Title V.

34. 326 IAC 2-7-5 provides that each Title V permit must include, among other things,
enforceable emission limitations and standards as are necessary to assure compliance with
applicable requirements of the Act and the requirements of the applicable SIP.

35. 326 IAC 2-7-4 requires that a source submit a complete permit application which, among

other things, identifies all applicable requirements and certifies compliance with all applicable
requirements.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
36.  Isolatek is a corporation authorized to'do business in Indiana.

37. Isolatek is a “person,” as that term is defined in Section 302(e) of the Act,
42 US.C. § 7602(¢).

38.  Atalltimes relevant to this Notice, Isolatek owned and operated emission units at its

mineral wool production facility at 701 North Broadway Street, Huntington, Huntington County,
Indiana (“Huntington plant”).

39. [solatek’s Huntington plant is a “major stationary source,” as that term is defined in the
Indiana SIP at 326 IAC 2-3-1(q), in that it emits, or has the potential to emit several regulated
NSR pollutants in excess of 250 tons per year.

40. [solatek’s Huntington plant is located in Huntington County Indiana, which at all times
relevant to this Notice was classified as attainment for SO, and CO.

41.  In2005, [solatek completed physical changes subject to the PSD regulations at the
Huntington plant including construction and operation of an oxygen enrichment system at both
of the cupolas at the Huntington plant. Isolatek failed to obtain the required permits, conduct any
modeling, or undergo any other sort of pre-construction review for these physical changes.



NOTICE AND FINDING OF VIOLATIONS

Violations of PSD

42.  The project described in Paragraph 41 caused a “significant net emissions increase” of
SO, TRS, and CO as defined in 326 [AC 2-2-1(jj).

43.  The project described in Paragraph 41 constituted a “major modification,” as that term is
defined at 326 IAC 2-2-1(ce).

44.  Isolatek failed to apply for and/or obtain a PSD permit prior to beginning actual
construction of the activities described in paragraph 41, and failed to install and operate BACT
for SO,, TRS, and CO.

45. Therefore, [solatek violated and continues to violate the PSD requirements found at
Section 165 of Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7475, and the Indiana SIP, for constructing the major
modification, as identified at paragraph 41, to an existing major source at its Huntington plant,
without applying for or obtaining the PSD permit and operating the modified facility without
installing the BACT or going through PSD review, and installing appropriate emissions control
equipment in accordance with a BACT analysis.

Violations of the Title V Permit Program

46. Isolatek is in violation of the Title V permitting requirements at Section 503 of the Act,
40 C.F.R. Part 70, because it has failed and continues to fail to submit a timely and complete
application for a Title V operating permit for the Huntington plant that: (i) includes information
pertaining to the construction and operation of the project described in paragraph 41; (ii)
identifies all applicable requirements including, but not limited to the requirement to apply,
install and operate BACT for SO;, TRS, and CO; (iii) accurately certifies compliance with such

requirements; and (iv) contains a compliance plan for ail applicable requirements for which it is
not in compliance.

ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY

47. Section 113(a)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(1), provides that at any time after the
expiration of 30 days following the date of the issuance of a notice of violation, the
Administrator may, without regard to the peniod of violation, issue an order requiring compliance
with the requirements of the applicable SIP, issue an administrative penalty order pursuant to
Section 1| 13(d), or bring a civil action pursuant to Section 1 13(b) for injunctive relief and/or civil
penalties.



48. Section 113(a)(3) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(3), provides in part that if the
Administrator finds that a person has violated, or is in violation of any requirement or prohibition
of any rule promulgated under Title V of the Act, the Administrator may issue an administrative
penalty order under Section 1 13(d), issue an order requiring compliance with such requirement
or prohibition, or bring a civil action pursuant to Section 113(b) for injunctive relief and/or civil
penalties.
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I, Tracy Jamison, certify that 1 sent a Notice and Finding of Violation,
No. EPA-5-11-01 by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, to:

., Tom Lund, Branch Manager
U.S. Mineral Products Company (d/b/a Isolatek International)
701 North Broadway Street
Huntington, Indiana 46750

I also certify that I sent copies of the Finding of Violation and Notice of Violation
by first class mail to:

Phil Perry, Chief

Compliance and Enforcement Branch

Office of Air Quality

Indiana Department of Environmental Management
100 North Senate Avenue, Room IGCN 1003
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251

Anthony J. Reitano, Esg.
Herold Law, P.A.

25 Independence Boulevard
Warren, New Jersey 07059

on the _& day 0f£bl]’jﬂ%’201 1.
%uMmW

Tracy famison
Office Automation Assistant
Planning and Administration Section
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